
Washington Central Unified Union School District 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 
their local and global communities. 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  
Phone (802) 229-0553 
Fax (802) 229-2761 

WCUUSD Finance Committee 
Meeting Agenda 

6.7.22 8:30-9:30 AM 
Central Office, 1130 Gallison Hill Rd. Montpelier 

Via Video Conference  

1. Call To Order

2. Approve Minutes of  5.10.22 – pg. 2

3. Informational Reports
3.1. Monthly Reflection – pg. 5

4. Discussion/Action
4.1. Discuss Possible Staffing Requests Beyond Budget – pg. 8
4.2. Award Revenue Anticipation Note & Reinvestment Bid – pg. 9
4.3. Award Property, Liability and Workers Compensation Insurance Bid – pg.10
4.4. Adopt Capital Improvement Plan – pg. 12
4.5. Accept Parking Lot Project Scope and Budget – pg. 26
4.6. Proposal to Transfer General Fund Balance to Capital Reserve Fund – pg. 28

5. Next Meeting Date and future Agenda Items
5.1. Next Regular Meeting August 9, 2022
5.2. Operating Budget Policy & Planning – August
5.3. Quarterly Financial Update – August
5.4. Capital Improvement Project Updates

6. Adjourn

Berlin East Montpelier Calais 

Middlesex Worcester 

U- 32

Virtual Meeting Information 
https://tinyurl.com/3d8sckad 
Meeting ID: 893 3381 0619 

Password: 866534 
Dial by Your Location: 1-929-205-6099 

1

https://tinyurl.com/3d8sckad


Washington Central Unified Union School District 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to their 
local and global communities. 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Jennifer Miller-Arsenault  
Phone (802) 229-0553 Interim Superintendent 
Fax (802) 229-2761        

WCUUSD Finance Committee 
 Meeting Minutes Unapproved 

5.10.22 8:30-9:30 a.m.  
Central Office, 1130 Gallison Hill Rd., Montpelier 

Via Video Conference 

     Present: Flor Diaz Smith, Susanne Gann, Ursula Stanley, Chris O’brien, Natasha Eckart-Baning, 
Jennifer Miller-Arsenault, Eric Andersen, Daniel Keeney, Steven Dellinger-Pate 

1. Call to Order: Flor Diaz Smith called the meeting to order at 8:31 a.m.

2. Approve Minutes of 4.12.22: Ursula motioned to approve the minutes. Natasha seconded and
the motion passed unanimously.

3. Informational Reports
3.1. Monthly Reflection: Susanne highlighted the work of the fiscal team for the end of the fiscal

year. On April 20, we sent out a proposal for property, liability, and workers compensation 
insurance. We sent a request to Hickock and Boardman (our current vendor) and Vermont 
School Boards Insurance Trust (VSBIT). The bids are due to us by May 20. Both vendors have 
indicated they will be bidding on this. It is the intent to bring this  to the  June 7  finance  
meeting.  
Chris Leopold has provided the District with a letter responding to our request for an opinion 
on the treatment of reserve funds resulting from audited fund balance. This was requested as an 
assurance measure, due to indication from the AOE that Article 7 of the District Annual 
Warning did not clearly allow the Board to transfer funds from the reserve fund balance into 
the capital reserve fund. It is Chris’ opinion that Article 7 authorizes the transfer of surplus 
funds into the District’s Capital Reserve Fund, provided such funds will be used for purposes 
of “operating the school.” The letter also states that a capital expense is “properly and 
appropriately regarded as legitimate expense made for the purpose of “operating the school” 
and “transfers from Article 7 surplus funds into the District’s Capital reserve fund satisfy this 
standard and are consistent with the stated purposes under Article 7, as approved by the 
voters.” Susanne feels this will satisfy any concerns expressed by the AOE.    
The Vermont Bond Bank hosted a virtual conference on capital planning in April. The 
presenters and materials provided were helpful in planning our capital plan. Susanne advised 
she would be attending the Tri-State ASBO Conference at the end of May.  

3.2. Possible Changes in Para Educator Needs: Jen advised that the leadership team is working 
on confirming the student needs for para-educators (BI, Para educator support, and PCA 
support) for FY 22-23. Once the needs are determined, it will be compared to the budgeted 
FTE’s and the Board will be notified  should a request  ne needed to use the General Fund 
Balance due to additional needs.  

2



4. Discussion/Action
4.1. Authorize Superintendent to sign Contracts for WCUUSD: Natasha motioned that the

Finance Committee recommend that the Board authorize the Superintendent to sign all 
contracts on behalf of Washington Central Unified Union School District. Ursula 
seconded. The motion passed unanimously.   

4.2. Blanket Authorization for Board Warrants/Check Orders: Ursula Stanley motioned to 
recommend that the Board authorize the Superintendent process payments and print 
checks for payroll, related benefits, and accounts payable. Daniel Keeney seconded. 
Susanne will revise the wording, as the wording was confusing. Susanne advised that it will 
have to be signed by eight school board members. The motion passed unanimously.  

4.3. Energy Procurement Process: WCUUSD has traditionally solicited and awarded bids for fuel 
oil, propane, wood chips, and wood pellets in June each year. There have been concerns about 
the impact of the current market prices for energy on our bids and budget. Chris reported that 
the statewide group of Facilities Directors were holding off on soliciting. Susanne surveyed 
other school district business managers to find out what they typically do and what they plan to 
do this year. Everyone is planning to wait until fall this year. Instead of bidding these products 
in June, we plan to research the possible use of an Energy Advisor, Competitive Energy 
Services (CES). CES is a privately held firm with no affiliate relationships, so the company is 
100% neutral and puts the interest of their clients first in the process. CES has 20 years of 
experience in energy procurement and provides data reporting, tracking, and analysis that will 
help with buying and budgeting. Utilizing experienced representatives for this work will cost a 
fee, but it is likely to save the district $.10-.20 per gallon. Since WCUUSD has not used an 
advisor for this purpose in the past, we wanted to inform the committee of this consideration 
and seek feedback regarding a possible change in practice. Chris O’brien added that the price 
we locked in at last year has since doubled and this could be helpful. Eric Andersen asked if it 
was possible to get more information on CES regarding background. He feels that we should 
find out what is available locally before we jump to use CES. Flor asked what the cost of using 
CES is.  Susanne advised that she have to do more research. Flor asked Susanne to write  
separate memos for the motion recommendation so it is clear it is not under the energy 
procurement umbrella.  There was discussion as to whether or not CES is a needed service 
since we have not used this service in the past. Ursula motioned to recommend that the 
Board authorize the Superintendent to award contracts for fuel oil, propane, wood chips, 
wood pellets, and paper on behalf of Washington Central Unified Union School District. 
Daniel Keeney seconded. The motion passed.  

4.4. Award Bid for Network Switches and Approve Use of Technology Reserve Funds: Mark 
advised that each year we replace of our network infrastructure (firewalls, servers, 
virtualization, host switches, wireless access points etc.) The main firewall, virtualization 
platforms, and servers were updated last year. The next step is to replace network switches. 
Five companies bid on the firewalls: ADT, CIPAfilter, JSCM, WCA, and Ormsby’s computer 
Systems. Only Ormsby’s bid on the network switches. The quote from Ormsby’s was for 
$103,232 before e-rate reimbursement. It would be ideal for the District to complete 
installation of the new switches this summer. The District currently has $357,928 of fund 
balance reserved for technology hardware purchases. Ursula  motioned to recommend that 
the board approve awarding the bid for network switches to Ormsby’s computers and 
authorize the use of up to $103,232 of funds reserved for technology hardware for the 
purchase of network switches. Daniel seconded. The motion passed.  

3



4.5. Approve Purchase of New Windows at U-32: There is $34,500 allotted for the replacement 
of windows in five classrooms at U-32 this summer. We had one vendor, Portland Glass 
respond to a request for bid. The base bid was $21,832. No bid waiver is required, as the 
purchase does not exceed $40,000. We would like to move forward with this project this 
summer.     Ursula motioned to recommend that the board award the bid for replacement 
windows at U-32 to Portland Glass for an amount not to exceed $24,015. Daniel seconded. 
The motion passed.  

4.6. Approve Tractor/UTV Lease for U-32: U-32 currently has a 2008 Kubota Tractor with 
bucket, snow blower and street sweeper attachments and a Kubota UTV with snowplow and 
salt spreader. This equipment is scheduled for replacement in FY 22-23. Staff would like to 
trade the tractor, UTV, and attachments for a John Deere tractor with attachments and a UTV 
with attachments, using a lease program. A lease will spread the cost impact on the budget out 
over five years. This will move the expense out of the equipment line and into the lease 
expense line. Replacing equipment more frequently will reduce downtime required to perform 
machine maintenance as well as time and labor spent on the maintenance of the equipment. 
United Ag and Turf came in as the lowest bidder. We received four bids.  Ursula motioned to 
recommend that the board authorize the Superintendent to sign a 60-month lease 
agreement with United Ag and Turf for the trade of equipment and lease of a John Deere 
tractor and UTV for $1283.04/month, with the option to purchase the equipment for $1 at 
the end of the lease. Eric seconded. Discussion: Eric asked what it would cost to purchase as 
opposed to lease it. Chris advised that $68,999 is the lease price and the purchase price. The 
motion passed.   

4.7. Capital Improvement Plan: Susanne documented some of the feedback from the Community 
Forum regarding the Capital Improvement Plan. Notes from the meeting included: 
1. Possible need to clarify hierarchical requests for projects in the stakeholder role.
2. Additional emphasis on energy efficiency even when a project request is Priority 1.
3. A statement in the plan that we will fully fund the five-year capital budget.
She proposed next steps that staff will revise the plan based upon the feedback and any
additional recommendations from the Finance Committee, and then present them to the
Leadership Team for review, discussion, and approval. The plan will be brought to the board
for approval on May 18. Discussion: Ursula asked if there could be a red lined version
provided for the next board meeting. Flor asked if the capital plan and feedback form could be
posted on the website. Flor will also post on front porch forum.

5. Next Meeting Date and Future Agenda Items
5.1. Next Meeting June 7, 2022
5.2. Revenue Anticipation Note & Investment Bid-June
5.3. Property, Liability and Worker’s Compensation Insurance Bid – June
5.4. Operating Budget Policy & Planning

6. Adjourn

4



Washington Central Unified Union School District 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 
their local and global communities. 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Jennifer Miller-Arsenault 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Interim Superintendent  
Fax (802) 229-2761 

TO:   WCUUSD Finance Committee & School Board 
FROM:  Susanne D. Gann, WCUUSD Business Administrator 
RE:     Monthly Reflections 
DATE:   June 2, 2022 

Auditors from our accounting firm, RHR Smith, were in office on May 18th – 20th to review 
FY 2021-22 files and perform tests, as a pre-audit for the end of the fiscal year.  The focus at 
this stage was on accounts payable procedures, pulling and reviewing invoices, reconciling 
prior year ending balances to beginning balances, verifying budgets in the software to voter 
approved budgets.  The auditors also reviewed the new reporting requirements for 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) rule 84, which requires student activities 
accounts to be reported in the financials of a school district in a special revenue fund.  All 
items reviewed were in satisfactory order, and the auditors indicated we are in good shape 
for the final audit of accounts in August. 

Following the pre-audit, the fiscal services team debriefed a couple of auditor 
recommendations. 

1. Recommendation: Complete a physical inventory of food on hand more frequently
than at fiscal year-end.
Action: We will work with food service staff to set up procedures for physical
inventory to be completed prior to the December break and at fiscal year-end.

2. Recommendation: Implement procedures that incorporate the review and
approval of journal entries by two people.
Action: Journal entries will be reviewed and approved by two people before
entering into our accounting software.

These recommendations are not a performance evaluation, but suggestions to further 
strengthen the financial controls of the organization to prevent fraud.  Compliance is not 
mandatory. 

5



Monthly Reflections 

The month of June is the final push to close out the financials for the fiscal year.  The Fiscal 
Services Team has developed a timeline for completion of the closeout process.  Important 
process completion dates are: 

June 8th – Meet with food service personnel about year-end inventory procedures. 
June 17th – All supplies and services must be received in order to include them in the 
financials for this fiscal year.  Anything received after this date will be accounted for in FY 
2022-23. 
June 21st – Paycheck date for summer checks, in accordance with Article 9.6 of the 
Educational Support Personnel (ESP) Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA).   
June 24th – The last regular paycheck date for all contracted employees. 
June 28th – Personal Leave payouts resulting from Article 13.6 of the ESP CBA. 
June 30th – Payroll closed. 
June 30th – The last accounts payable invoices will be entered and checks issued.  Accounts 
Payable closed. 
June 30th – Final cash postings and bank reconciliations. 

July 8th – First payroll of FY 2022-23 
July 12th – All general ledger entries to be completed and financial system closed for fiscal 
year 2021-22.  Final audit preparation begins. 

As we roll out this month, there is anticipation and work to complete, but appreciate the 
thoughtful planning and having such a knowledgeable Team to make the process less 
stressful.  

In an effort to increase operational efficiency, several Central Office Team members have 
begun to document more organizational procedures.  The first areas of focus have been on 
grant procedures and HR procedures.  These procedures identify the key stakeholders, 
their roles and responsibilities, action items and a timeline for completion of action items. 

An updated Finance Committee Agenda Timeline for FY 2022-23 is included here for your 
review.   

6



Washington Central Unified Union School District

Finance Committee Agenda Timeline

Fiscal Year 2022-23

Agenda Item July August 9th
September 

13th

October 

11th

November 

8th

December 

13th

January 

10th

February 

7th
March 14th April 11th May 9th June 13th

Review and approve the final audit report for the prior year X

Quarterly Financial Update X X X X

Operating Budget Policy and Planning X

Review and approve budget timeline and process X

Review and approve Capital Improvement Project Plan and Five-

year Budget
X

Review and approve the Dental and HRA budget X

Review and approve the Food Service budget X

Review and approve the Community Connections budget

School Board Budget Training X

Review and discuss budget drafts X X X

Financial Review of Projected Tax Information X

Financial Review of Comparative Information X

Review Town Meeting Items - Warnings, Town Report Format, 

School Board Vacancies
X

Prepare for Community Forum for budget presentations X X X X X

Capital Improvement Project Updates X X

Review and approve Clerk of the Works Contract for Capital 

Improvement Projects
X

Capital Improvement Project Bid Awards X X

Annual Review and Approval of the Financial Questionnaire X

Annual Approval of the Blanket Authorization for Board Orders X

Annual Bid Award for the Revenue Anticipation Note and 

Investments
X

Annual Bid Awards for Property, Liability, Workers 

Compensation Insurance
X

Annual Authorization for the Superintendent to Award Paper, 

Propane, Wood Chips, Wood Pellets, Oil bids
X

Annual Approval for Superintendent to Sign Contracts X

Annual Approval for Superintendent to Accept Federal Grants X

Review and Approve Staffing Requests beyond Budget for Next 

Fiscal Year
X X

7



Washington Central Unified Union School District 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 
their local and global communities. 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Jennifer Miller-Arsenault 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Interim Superintendent  
Fax (802) 229-2761 

TO:   WCUUSD Finance Committee and School Board 
FROM:  Susanne D. Gann, WCUUSD Business Administrator 
RE:     Staffing Requests Beyond Budget – FY 2022-23 
DATE:   June 2, 2022 

The Leadership Team continues to assess the need for para-educators across the district to 
meet student IEP needs for FY 2022-23.  Ideally, advertising to fill these positions would 
begin as soon as this process is complete. 

The Team has identified a need for four additional para-educators at the elementary 
schools, for an estimated cost of $221,496.  If the Team is unable to find savings within the 
voter-approved budget to support these positions, the Team will request that the Board 
assigns general operating fund balance to cover the additional cost of positions.   

Possible Recommended Board Action: The Board approve advertising to hire for up to 
4.0 additional para-educators in order to meet district-wide IEP needs. 

8



Washington Central Unified Union School District 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 
their local and global communities. 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Jennifer Miller-Arsenault 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Interim Superintendent  
Fax (802) 229-2761 

TO:    WCUUSD Finance Committee and School Board 
FROM:   Susanne Gann, Business Administrator 
RE:    Award Revenue Anticipation Note & Investment Bid 
DATE:    June 2, 2022 

Summary: The District invited seven local financial institutions to bid on the annual 
revenue anticipation note and investment of funds for Washington Central UUSD for the 
period July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023.  Bids were required to be submitted no later than 
Monday, June 6, 2022 at 11:00 a.m.  The results of the bid will be brought to the Finance 
Committee meeting, Tuesday, June 7, 2022 in preparation of the full board meeting, June 
15, 2022. 

Recommended Board Action: The Board approve the revenue anticipation note for an 
amount not to exceed $8,313,020 and investment bid as requested and authorize the Board 
Chair to sign the loan documents on behalf of the Board. 

9



Washington Central Unified Union School District 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 
their local and global communities. 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Jennifer Miller-Arsenault 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Interim Superintendent  
Fax (802) 229-2761 

TO:    WCUUSD Finance Committee and School Board 
FROM:   Susanne Gann, Business Administrator 
RE:    Award Property, Liability and Worker’s Compensation Insurance Bid 
DATE:    June 2, 2022 

Summary: The District invited Hickok & Boardman and the Vermont School Board’s 
Insurance Trust (VSBIT) to submit proposals for Property, Liability and Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance coverage for July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023.  The request was also 
publicly advertised in the Times Argus.  The District was fortunate and received proposals 
from both insurers.  Hickock & Boardman provided the lowest bid amount at $191,513. The 
breakdown of the insurer proposals follows on the next page. 

Recommended Board Action: The Board award the Property, Liability and Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance contract, for the district-wide coverage for July 1, 2022 – June 30, 
2023, to Hickock and Boardman/Liberty Mutual for $191,513. 

10



Property, Liability and Worker’s Compensation Insurance Bid 

Type of Coverage 

Hickock & 
Boardman/Liberty 
Mutual (includes 
cyber) 

VSBIT (no cyber) 

Commercial Property $46,451 $155,862 

Commercial General Liability $21,882 
Included in 
Property 

School Leaders E & O Liability $7,547 
Included in General 
Liability 

Sexual Misconduct and Molestation Liability 
Included in General 
Liability 

Included in General 
Liability 

Inland Marine $5,648 
Included in General 
Liability 

Commercial Automobile $13,156 
Included in 
Property 

Commercial Crime $1,851  
Included in General 
Liability 

Worker’s Compensation $78,659 $140,895 

Commercial Umbrella Liability $12,130 
Included in General 
Liability 

Volunteer Accident Insurance $468 
Included in 
Worker’s Comp 

Public Official Bond $250 
Included in General 
Liability 

Blanket Accident Insurance $600 
Included in General 
Liability 

Catastrophic Accident (School to Work and 
Community Service Students) 

$2,871 
Included in 
Property 

 
Total Cost 
 

$191,513 $296,757 

 
Note: Hickock and Boardman’s bid includes the cost of cyber insurance.  VSBIT would need 
additional information to provide a quote for cyber insurance. 
 

11



Washington Central Unified Union School District 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 
their local and global communities. 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Jennifer Miller-Arsenault 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Interim Superintendent  
Fax (802) 229-2761 

TO:  WCUUSD Finance Committee and School Board 
FROM:  Susanne D. Gann, Business Administrator 

  Chris O’Brien, Director of Facilities 
RE:     Adopt Capital Improvement Plan 
DATE:   June 2, 2022 

Review: The Board received the Capital Improvement Plan at the April 27th meeting and 
held a Community Forum on May 4th to discuss the plan and receive feedback from the 
public.  The need for changes identified at those meetings included: 

1. A statement in the plan that we will fully fund the five-year capital budget.
2. A possible need to clarify the request process for projects in the stakeholder roles.
3. Additional emphasis on energy efficiency even when a project request is Priority 1.

At the May 18th Board meeting, the Board received a red-lined revised version of the 
Capital Improvement Plan incorporating responses to the above notes.  Since the May 4th 
Community Forum, the proposed plan with revisions has been available for viewing on the 
WCUUSD website along with a form to provide feedback for further revisions.  No 
additional feedback has been received from the public.  The final version of the Capital 
Improvement Plan is included in this packet. 

Recommended Board Action: The Board adopt the final draft of the Capital Improvement 
Plan included in the packet. 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



Washington Central Unified Union School District 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 
their local and global communities. 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Jennifer Miller-Arsenault 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Interim Superintendent  
Fax (802) 229-2761 

TO:  WCUUSD Finance Committee and School Board 
FROM:  Susanne D. Gann, Business Administrator 

  Chris O’Brien, Director of Facilities 
RE:     Accept Parking Lot Project Scope and Budget 
DATE:   June 2, 2022 

Review: At the March 16th meeting, the Board authorized a feasibility study of the U-32 parking lot 
layout to incorporate traffic flow and safety improvements in the parking lot paving project scope. 

Update: Engineering Ventures has completed the feasibility study and provided a full scope and 
current budget for repaving the current parking lot, replacing sidewalks, and making driveway 
circulation improvements. The budget includes concrete sidewalks and monolithic concrete 
curbing for the replacement of the existing curb and asphalt walk along the Southern Paved Parking 
Area and Middle Paved Parking Area. 

Proposed Budget for U-32 Parking Lot Project 

Area to Address Cost 
With 10% 
Contingency 

Recommendation 

Bus Loop & Sidewalks $536,296 $589,925 Proceed 

Drop-Off & Southern Paved Parking Area $992,815 $1,092,096 Proceed 

Middle Paved Parking Area $276,211 $303,832 Proceed 

Estimated Soft Costs $95,000 $104,500 Proceed 

Subtotal $1,900,322 $2,090,354 

Northern Gravel Parking Area $204,601 $225,061 Do not proceed 

Western Paved Parking Area $190,687 $209,756 Do not proceed 

Total $2,295,610 $2,525,171 

Recommendation: The Board authorize the Superintendent to engage Engineering Ventures to 
complete bidding for the U-32 parking lot repaving, sidewalk replacements, and driveway 
circulation improvements, for an amount not to exceed $2,090,354. 

26



OP
TI

ON
 3 

CO
NC

EP
T 

PL
AN

1 of 1
27

Markd
Text Box
21498

Markd
Text Box
MJD

Markd
Text Box
4/20/2022

kevinw
PolyLine

kevinw
Text Box
ADA

kevinw
Text Box
ADA

kevinw
Cloud

kevinw
Cloud

kevinw
Cloud

kevinw
Cloud

kevinw
Polygon

kevinw
Text Box
SNOW STORAGE

kevinw
Text Box
SNOW STORAGE

kevinw
Text Box
SNOW STORAGE

kevinw
Text Box
SNOW STORAGE

Markd
Polygon

Markd
PolyLine

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon

Markd
Polygon



Washington Central Unified Union School District 

WCUUSD exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to 
their local and global communities. 

1130 Gallison Hill Road 
Montpelier, VT  05602  Jennifer Miller-Arsenault 
Phone (802) 229-0553 Interim Superintendent  
Fax (802) 229-2761 

TO:  WCUUSD Finance Committee and School Board 
FROM:  Susanne D. Gann, Business Administrator 
RE:    Approve transfer from General Fund Balance to Capital Reserve Fund 
DATE:   June 3, 2022 

Review: The Capital Improvement Plan states that the District is committed to funding the 
approved Five-year Capital Improvement Budget through a combination of funding 
sources.  It also states that, “the Board will consider possible combinations of transfers 
from the General Fund Balance, increases in the amount raised through taxes on the 
General Fund Budget, or the potential for a Construction Bond Initiative in order to 
adequately fund the anticipated Five-Year Capital Improvement Budget without expected 
shortfalls.” 

Capital Fund Needs: In order to meet this commitment, assuming the annual transfer 
included in the voter-approved budget remains $880,000; the Board must transfer at least 
$1,030,000 at this time.  Estimated spending on projects for the next five years (FY 23 to FY 
27) range between $1,019,500 and $2,765,354.  This is an average annual amount of
$1,686,111.

General Fund Reserve Capacity:  The recommended General Fund Reserve balance is 2% 
of the district’s current year budget.   That target amount for FY 2022-23 is $723,386.  The 
anticipated amount available beyond the 2% target at the beginning of next fiscal year is 
$1,585,533. 

Finance Committee Discussion: 
It is the hope that the Finance Committee will discuss possible combinations of transfers 
from the General Fund Balance, which will fully finance the needs identified in the Five-
year Capital Budget and plan for project capacity beyond the fifth year.  A possible Board 
recommendation is provided to begin the conversation.   

28



Capital Improvement Plan and Five-Year Capital Budget 

 
As the committee considers the recommendation for the full board, some questions to 
think about are: 
 

1. How much money does the District want to have in the Capital Reserve Fund to 
begin FY 2027-28? 

2. How much might the District maintain beyond the recommended 2% in General 
Fund Reserves? 

3. What is the target combination of General Fund Reserve transfer and annual 
transfer from the voter-approved budget? 

 
Options FY 2021-22 Lump Sum 

Transfer from General Fund 
to Capital Reserve Fund 

Annual Transfer 
included in Voter-
approved Budget 

Estimated Capital 
Reserve Fund 

Balance at Beg of 
FY 2027-28 

1 $1,030,000 $880,000 $882,460 
2 $1,030,000 $1,000,000 $1,486,072 
3 $1,500,000 $880,000 $1,364,328 
4 $1,500,000 $1,000,000 $1,967,940 

 
Possible Board Recommendation: The Board approve transferring $1,500,000 from the 
General Fund Reserve to the Capital Reserve Fund. 

29


	6.7.22 Finance Committee Agenda
	5.10.22 Finance Committee Minutes Unapproved
	ADP8680.tmp
	FY 2022-23




